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About Us

“We all strive to be healthy. Yet sometimes, making the right choice is beyond our control. That's where Holista CollTech comes
in. We have devoted our time into researching and finding natural solutions to help you improve their health. After all, being
healthy is the best gift you can give your body.”

CORPORATE PROFILE

Holista CollTech Ltd (Holista) is research-driven biotech company and is the result of the merger of Holista Biotech Sdn. Bhd.
and CollTech Australia Ltd.

Headquartered in Perth with extensive operations in Malaysia, Holista is dedicated to delivering first-class natural ingredients
and wellness products, and leads in research on herbs and food ingredients.

Holista, listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX:HCT), researches, develops, manufactures and markets “health-style”
products to address the unmet and growing needs of natural medicine.

Holista has a suite of food ingredients which does not compromise on taste, odour and mouth-feel. This includes low-Glycemic
Index (“Gl”) baked products, low sodium salt, low fat fried foods and low calories sugar.

It is the only company to produce sheep (ovine) collagen using patented extraction methods from Australia, and is on track in
nano-nising and encapsulating liposomes for the ovine collagen.

Holista aims to build a world class company focused on providing consumers with scientifically enhanced, engineered and
tested natural health supplements and consumer products.
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Managing Director’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the Board), | am pleased to present the Annual Report and audited financial statements of
Holista CollTech Limited (Holista or the Group) for the 12 months ended 31 December 2017 (FY2017).

This report represents a scorecard of our performance for the period in review as well as a snapshot of our strategic direction,
taking into account significant developments subsequent to the financial year-end. In summary, after scientific validation and
extensive engagement with potential clients, we have finally broken through to the global mass market for healthier white-flour
based products, starting with noodles.

Low-Gl Products To Address Global Healthcare Pandemic

As shareholders are aware, we have expended considerable efforts to develop our proprietary formula for clean-label low
glycemic index (Gl) flour-based products. The global pandemic of obesity and diabetes, which is due largely to diet, represents a
major healthcare problem worldwide.

It also offers an exceptional opportunity for Holista. What we seek to achieve is simple and yet exciting — to develop solutions
which allow us to collaborate with major food manufacturers. The pandemic has to be fought with food economics — and our
response has been an affordable low-GI formula free of additives or chemicals (clean label) which does not change the taste or
texture of food products.

We announced on 12 January 2016 that the University of Sydney had successfully tested our formula of PANATURA®GI in white
bread, developed by Holista and our Swiss partner Veripan Ltd (Veripan). Clinical trials showed that white bread made with four
different blends of the formula scored readings of 49, 51 and 54 (twice), far lower than the average for normal white bread.

On 27 November 2017, we announced that Veripan will join an Australian consortium led by Food Innovation Australia Ltd.
(FIAL) to develop new Gl screening methods that will help manufacturers meet rising consumer appetite for healthy food. The
consortium consists of several prominent Australian organisations: the Glycemic Index Foundation, the University of Sydney,
the NSW Department of Primary Industries, Logio Group Pty. Lte., Next Instruments Pty. Ltd. and SunRice/Ricegrowers Ltd.
Under the FIAL Programme EO 1, Holista and Veripan will work with the consortium to develop validated in-vitro (‘within the
glass’) using test tube methods for rapid mass screening of starch-based foods such as bread, potatoes, rice, pasta and cereal.

Currently, there are 5 ongoing trials with the formulas of leading bread manufactures in North America, Europe, Asia and
Australia. This should all be completed by June 2018.

Low-Gl Noodles, A Market Breakthrough Starting In North America

On 19 October 2017, we announced a low-Gl noodle formula developed by our U.S. subsidiary, HolistaFoods Inc.
(HolistaFoods). This significant breakthrough is a result of a research and development (R&D) collaboration between
HolistaFoods and Wing’s Food Products (Wing’s) — a major North American noodle manufacturer based in Canada — to develop
the world’s first low-GI noodles.

HolistaFoods, which is based in New York, was formed on 12 July 2016 following a partnership with Nadja Foods LLC (Nadja
Foods). On 17 October 2017, Litefood Inc. acquired an additional 25% of HolistaFoods, following which HolistaFoods became a
39%-owned subsidiary of Holista CollTech. HolistaFoods is now 74%-owned by LiteFood Inc. and 26% owned by Nadja Foods.
LiteFoods Inc. is 53%-owned by Holista.

The low-Gl noodles recorded a Gl reading of 38 in independent tests by Glycemic Index Laboratories, Inc., Toronto, Canada,
compared to the global average of 60. The noodles are endorsed by the Glycemic Index Foundation and follow the guidelines
and recommendations of Diabetes Canada. An 85-gram serving of noodles contains 11 grams of protein, three grams of fibre
and zero sugar, while being low in sodium and cholesterol and providing sustained energy. The noodles cook in just three
minutes. The low-Gl formula comprises extracts of okra (ladies’ fingers), lentils, barley and fenugreek — all-natural clean label
ingredients, with no artificial ingredients or preservatives.

| am pleased to announce that subsequent to the year-end, HolistaFoods shipped the first 1,000 kg of our Gl-reducer for
noodles to Wing’s. Our agreement with Wing’s, together with the maiden shipment, places us on course to record about US$6
million in sales in FY2018 for this noodle formula. While this first shipment was made from Malaysia, all future shipments will
be sourced from India and Canada. The final blending will be done in a Canadian facility approved and certified for food safety
and acceptance for consumption by Muslims (halal) and the Jewish community (kosher). Shareholders should note that Holista
will benefit in terms of direct royalty payments of all sales via HolistaFoods as well as a share of profits in the subsidiary
company.

This delivery marks HolistaFoods’ entry into the global noodle market. According to Grand View Research, the global pasta and
noodle market was valued at US$59.6 billion in 2016 and is expected to grow at a compounded annual rate of 3.6%. The noodle
market in the United States, the world’s sixth largest consumer of instant noodles, is itself worth US$270 million. In 2016, the
World Instant Noodles Association reported 97.5 billion servings consumed around the world. Noodles account for half the
world’s supply of wheat, compared to 25% for bread.
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Managing Director’s Report

We are working towards significantly increasing the volume shipment to Wing’s from FY2018 and beyond. Under our
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), sales to Wing’s are expected to be US$6 million for 2018 before increasing to US$12
million in 2019 and USS$25 million in 2020. We are working very hard to achieve these targets.

Other Low-Gl Products

The validation of our low-GlI noodle formula is significant because i) it will help Holista to market in other parts of the world,
including the major noodle markets of China and Indonesia; ii) it has attracted interest and increased confidence from
breadmakers whom we are already engaging for our bread Gl-reducer; and iii) improve opportunities for similar low-Gl
formulas for other flour-based products which we are already developing, such as muffins, pancakes and pasta.

On 6 January 2017, we announced the collaboration with 2016 Nobel Prize Nominee Daryl Thompson to file a patent for the
low-Gl sugar made from all-natural ingredients. Unlike other forms of low-Gl sugar that are cane-based, our patented low-Gl
sugar covers common natural sugars such as cane, palm, beetroot, corn and more. It can also be melted, baked and
caramelized for use in all cooking applications.

We are now moving into prototype making and low Gl testing in North America.

Food-Grade Collagen

This area of business registered an increase during the year due to the seasonal nature of cosmetic collagen. We delivered
8,440 kg of collagen during the 12 months in review, compared to 1,520 kg in the previous reporting period.

On 3 April 2017, the Group announced that it will supply collagen sourced from Australian sheep — certified disease-free by the
U.S. Department of Agriculture — to units of Australia’s Keneric Medical Supplies Pty Ltd, which will develop products aimed at
the multibillion-U.S. dollar global medical collagen market, marking Holista’s entry into the sector.

According to U.K. biotechnology market research group Meticulous Research, the global collagen market is expected to grow at
a compounded annual rate of 6.3% from 2015 to reach US$3.97 billion by 2020. The world’s largest collagen market is China, as
collagen forms a critical component of Traditional Chinese Medicine. It is also popular with ethnic Chinese people elsewhere in
the world.

During the year under review, we commenced an AS1 million retrofit of our facility in Collie, Western Australia, to prepare for
production of halal-certified food-grade collagen. The retrofit is scheduled for completion by end-June 2018. Upon completion
of the retrofit and the securing of halal certification, the Collie plant’s capacity will be an additional 4 tonnes of food-grade
collagen per month, supplementing the 1-2 tonnes of cosmetic-grade collagen we currently produce.

The Group will sell food collagen via a unique collaboration with iGalen International Inc. (iGalen), a global network marketing
company headquartered in San Diego

iGalen

As announced on 21 September 2017, | sold a 47% stake in iGalen to Holista — of which | am CEO and single-largest shareholder
—for the nominal sum of USS$1.

iGalen sources all bio-pharmaceutical and dietary supplement products exclusively from Holista. It currently has more than
8,000 independent distributors, with its main markets being North America, the Philippines, Malaysia, Australia and New
Zealand. iGalen currently distributes two main products — Emulin® (an all-natural refined carbohydrate manager which
improves weight loss and metabolic outcomes) and Klamax (a supplement which can enhance stem cell growth and promote
their release).

Sales of Supplements

Dietary supplements were the Group’s main source of income this year. While the Group has a strong distribution network
throughout Malaysia, market conditions in the country remain challenging as inflation (due to the relative weakness of the
Malaysian Ringgit against major world currencies) continues to impact customers’ purchasing power.

The Group has launched initiatives to increase its presence in the dietary supplements market. In the year under review, we
released a new dietary supplement product, PRISTIN® GOLD, in Malaysia. PRISTIN® GOLD contains Omega-3 benefits in fewer
servings. The fish oil is imported from EPAX AS, Norway, and is encapsulated in fish gelatin capsules by Eurocaps Ltd., UK. Sales
reached $566,000 in the first year of launch.

On 9 August 2017, the Group secured global rights to Emulin®, which has also proven successful in combating obesity and
diabetes.

On 14 November 2017, the Group secured global distribution rights for Klamax, which is sourced from algae found in pristine
conditions in a United States lake.

The Group is also exclusively supplying raw material to multi-level marketing companies and will continue to source for new
potential products in the coming financial year.
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Financial Performance

As announced on 9 January 2017, the Group changed its financial year-end to 31 December from 30 June previously. For
FY2017, we will be comparing the 12-month performance against the previous six-month performance for FY2016.

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners of the parent of $3,030,290 for FY2017. Included in the loss for the year
are share-based payments and share-based consulting fees amounting to $2,350,921. These are non-cash transactions and are
not part of the operating activities of the Group.

Outlook

Having secured our first significant order for the noodle Gl-reducer in early 2018, the Group will focus on shipping the
deliverables as indicated in the MoU with Wing’s of Canada, so as to achieve the US$6 million in anticipated sales for 2018.
Assuming full delivery and constant foreign exchange rate — and barring unforeseen circumstances — sales to Wing’s alone could
even reach A$7.8 million in FY2018, slightly higher than the $7.6 million recorded in FY2017 when no revenue for the noodle Gl-
reducer was recognised.

With the growing momentum of iGalen sales, the Group expects to record higher revenue from the supply of Emulin+ and
Klamax to the direct marketing company. The introduction of new products during FY2018, such as sheep collagen, will also
contribute to the Group’s financial performance. We also expect sheep collagen production to increase following completion of
the retrofitting at the Collie plant; the agreement with Keneric Healthcare to supply medical-grade collagen is the first step
towards higher demand for this particular product.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my deepest gratitude to all stakeholders for their support, as well as
our R&D collaborators, retailers, suppliers and customers. | am also very grateful to my fellow Board members, our
management team and our staff for all their hard work.

Holista is committed to providing healthier alternatives to empower consumers with better choices. Together, we will continue
to achieve excellence in the coming years. We look forward to another exciting year ahead with all of you.

Thank you.

A
\

DR RAJEN I\K!ANICKA

Managing Director
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Key Milestones

Date Milestone

27 November 2017 Veripan joins an Australian consortium led by Food Innovation Australia Ltd. (FIAL) to develop new Gl
screening methods

14 November 2017 Secured global distribution rights for Klamax

19 October 2017 Holista’s breakthrough fomula for noodles is certified to have a low Gl score of 38 by the Glycemic
Index Laboratories, Inc., Toronto, Canada. The global average Gl reading for noodles is 60.

17 October 2017 Litefood Inc acquired an additional 25% of Holista Foods, following which HolistaFoods became a 39%-
owned subsidiary of Holista CollTech. HolistaFoods is now 74% owned by LiteFood Inc of US and 26%
owned by Nadja Foods. LiteFoods Inc is 53% owned by Holista.

21 September 2017 Acquired 47% stake in iGalen for the nominal sum of USS$1 (pending shareholders’ approval)

21 August 2017 Commenced a AS1 million retrofit of its facility in Collie, Western Australia, to prepare for production
of halal-certified food-grade collagen

9 August 2017 Secured global rights to distribute Emulin®

3 April 2017 Secured exclusive rights to supply medical grade collagen to Australia’s Keneric Medical Supplies Pty.
Ltd.

9 January 2017 Announced change of Financial year end to 31 December

6 January 2017 Announced collaboration with Nobel Prize nominee and emerging thought leader in carbohydrate
chemistry, Mr. Daryl Thompson, to file patent for the low Glycemic Index sugar made out of all-natural
ingredients.
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Messages From Our Key Partners

MS. NADJA PIATKA
CEO of Nadja Foods and CEO of Holista Foods

All over the world, cakes, cookies and other delicious desserts are part of the human diet. But there is a potential dark side to
this sweet-tooth craving — it is a major cause of obesity and diabetes.

As a bakery supplier to fast food chains for over 24 years, | have spent most of my career at Nadja Foods working to meet this
challenge. It began with the low-fat movement in the nineties when | first had great success with a line of muffins | created.
However, the science has moved on and it is increasingly clear that the new frontier is in lowering the sugar content of foods to
make them healthier.

The food and beverage industry is well aware of this. In North America, fast food chains are in a race to roll out healthier menu
items to win over customers. But how do we do it the natural way, without pricing products out of reach? This is why it was
important that we partnered with Holista. Dr Rajen and his team have laboured to develop and validate the science of lowering
the Glycemic Index, or Gl, of common foods. Holista has set the gold standard for clean-label Gl reduction for white flour
products.

Our joint venture aims to convince food manufacturers and fast food chains to accept a new and better way to make food
healthier. We will initially focus on North America where obesity and diabetes, linked to high glycemic foods, have become a
national emergency that has strained health care costs and negatively affected living standards.

After collaborating with Holista for the past few months, I’ve seen firsthand the potential to revolutionise the North American
food industry whilst meeting the concerns of food manufacturers. Given the market opportunity, it then made sense to cement
our partnership with Holista with our joint venture company, Holista Foods.

Holista has collaborated with Wing’s Food Products, a major noodle manufacturer across North America based in Canada, to
begin research and development on low-Gl noodles. Once our product is independently tested and validated at Gl-Labs, a
nutrition research organisation in Canada, we will enter a commercial agreement to manufacture and distribute it. In the
coming year, we will develop and market low-Gl baked goods and mixes which can be distributed to fast food companies,
retailers, schools and hospitals.

| am very proud to be working with Dr Rajen and share his passion to improve the world’s health through better food. Holista’s
leading food innovation and science coupled with my experience and reputation has positioned us to become major food
industry leaders in North America.

Thank you!

Nadja Piatka

Page |5 HOLISTA

COLLTECH




ANNUAL REPORT HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

31 December 2017 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Messages From Our Key Partners

MR. MEIERT J. GROOTES
Chairman of VERIPAN AG, a partner of Holista CollTech

Obesity is a social burden generated by human that is one of the greatest threats to the global economy. It is more serious than
climate change, smoking or air pollution. Currently, more than half of all people in Europe are directly affected by this social
burden and more than 30 % are on a global level. From 1980 to 2014 the prevalence of obesity more than doubled, with more
than 2 billion adults aged 18 years and older overweight today. Obesity is a chronic disease, growing in severity in both
developed and developing countries, and reaching through all age groups. The problem seems particularly acute in countries
such as Malaysia and Singapore which have the highest incidences of obesity in Southeast Asia (The Lancet, 2014).

In my opinion it was therefore clear from the beginning that the reformulation of food products should be one of the main
areas of our R&D program when it comes to battling the obesity crisis. This is why we at Veripan want to attack the crisis head
first and go after one of the biggest staple foods in the world: Our daily white bread. The global white bread market alone is
currently worth US$170 billion and it continues to grow. An increased consumption of white bread has been linked in multiple
studies to an increase in weight and especially in Asian countries with the westernization of diets the effects are more and more
visible.

With a Glycemic Index (Gl) of 77, white bread is amongst the staple foods with the highest GI. Essentially, the Glycemic Index is
a simple way to measure the quality of the carbohydrates we consume on a daily basis. Foods with a low Gl (below 55) raise the
blood sugar slower and sustain longer, making the person feel full for longer. A high Gl number however, lets the blood sugar
spike, giving the person a sugar rush, which plummets shortly after causing a quicker feeling of hunger. Furthermore, other side
effects of the sugar low are decrease in mood, extreme tiredness and less productivity.

In our partnership with Holista we have worked on a significant reduction of the Gl of products that are made from white flour
— such as breads, muffins and noodles — in a simple and cost-effective way. On 12 January 2016, we were able to announce a
global scientific breakthrough: world’s first clean-label low Gl white bread. Our innovation is made of a combination of Holista’s
proprietary natural Gl lowering ingredients (GILITE®), combined with Veripan’s proprietary natural sourdough PANATURA®.
With Gl readings between 49 and 53 white breads made with PANATURA® Gl show the lowest Gl reading ever achieved, and
only increases production costs marginally without compromising the taste or mouthfeel of the final product. Since the launch
of our low-Gl solution beginning of 2016, | have received numerous positive responses and many enquiries from leading bread
manufacturers all over the world.

Today, there are more than 2 billion overweight people all over the world and 600 million of them are obese. Just as much as
there is not a single cause for today’s obesity crisis there is also not a single solution. However, in the midst of this crisis it is
vital not to forget that obesity is preventable and that every problem also holds an opportunity. Reformulation of food, such as
developing a healthier white bread, much like PANATURA® Gl, is an opportunity for industries to produce healthier foods for
global consumers.

I have full confidence that our partnership with Holista will truly change the way we produce and consume white flour
products. And the implications for individuals seeking a healthier lifestyle and for government health planners will be
significant.

Thank you!

Meiert J. Grootes
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Directors' report

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity, consisting of Holista CollTech Limited (Holista or the Company)
and its controlled entities (collectively the Group), for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Holista is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

1. Directors

The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:

| Dr Rajen Manicka Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
u Mr Daniel Joseph O’Connor Non-executive Director

| Mr Chan Heng Fai Non-executive Director

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. For
additional information of Directors including details of the qualifications of Directors please refer to paragraph 7 Information
relating to the directors of this Directors Report.

2. Company secretary
The following people held the joint position of Company Secretary at the end of the financial year:

B Mr Jay Richard Stephenson
Qualifications O MBA, FCPA, CMA, FCIS, MAICD

Experience O Mr Stephenson has been involved in business development for over 25 years including
the past 20 years as Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for various
listed and unlisted entities in resources, manufacturing, wine, hotels, and property. He
has been involved in business acquisitions, mergers, initial public offerings, capital
raisings, business restructuring as well managing all areas of finance for companies

B MsJulia Beckett (Resigned 16 January 2018)

Qualifications O Ms Beckett holds a Certificate in Governance Practice and Administration and is a
Certificated Member of the Governance Institute Australia.

Experience O Ms Beckett is currently Company Secretary on a number ASX Listed and non-ASX listed
companies. Julia has held non-executive director roles on a number of ASX listed
companies.

The following person was appointed to the position of Company Secretary subsequent to the end of the financial year:

B Mr Brett Francis Fraser (Appointed 16 January 2018)
Quialifications 0 FCPA, F.Fin, B.Bus. FGIA
Experience O Mr Fraser has worked in the finance and securities industry for over 25 years’ and has

owned and operated businesses across wine, health, finance, media and mining.

In addition, Mr Fraser is a Fellow of Certified Practicing Accountants; Fellow of the
Financial Services Institute of Australasia; Fellow of the Governance Institute of
Australia and Grad Dip Finance, Securities Institute of Australia; Bachelor of Business
(Accounting). Mr Fraser also holds an International Marketing Institute - AGSM Sydney.

3. Dividends paid or recommended

There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

4. Significant Changes in the state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2017
other than disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Directors' report

5.1.

5.2.

Operating and financial review

Nature of Operations Principal Activities

During the financial year, the Group remained focused on its three core areas:
| Dietary Supplement

| Healthy Food Ingredients (including PANATURA®GI)

B Sheep Collagen (Ovine)

Operations Review

During the financial year, the Group remained focused on three core areas:
B Dietary Supplements

B Healthy Food Ingredients

B Sheep (Ovine) Collagen

a. Dietary Supplements

Dietary Supplements were the Group’s main income contributor during the financial year. While the Group has a strong
distribution network throughout Malaysia, market conditions in Malaysia remain challenging as inflation (due to the
relative weakness of the Ringgit against major world currencies) continues to impact customers’ purchasing power.

Revenue for this segment increased by 104.8% to $7,176,607 for the 12 months ended 31 December 2017 (new financial
year end), compared to $3,503,976 from the previous 6 months ending 31 December 2016 (previous financial year
end).The Group has launched initiatives to increase its presence in the Dietary Supplements market. In the year under
review, the Group released a new dietary supplement product, PRISTIN® GOLD, in Malaysia. PRISTIN® GOLD contains
Omega-3 benefits in fewer servings. The fish oil is imported from EPAX AS, Norway, and is encapsulated in fish gelatin
capsules by Eurocaps Ltd, UK. Sales reached $566,000 in the first year of launch.

On 8 March 2017, the Group launched iNContro™ (iNContro) in Kuala Lumpur, an all-natural spinach extract which helps
reduce hunger and food cravings.

On 9 August 2017, the Group secured global rights to an all-natural carbohydrate manager developed by two Nobel Prize
nominees, which has proven successful in combating obesity and diabetes.

On 14 November 2017, the Group secured global distribution rights for a supplement sourced from algae found in
pristine conditions in a lake in the United States, which can enhance stem cell growth and promote their release.

The Group is also exclusively supplying raw material to multi-level marketing companies and will continue to source for
new potential products in the next financial year.

b. Healthy Foods Ingredients
During the financial period, the Group focused on:

B Glycemic Index (Gl) Reducer
B Low-Gl Sugar

In the year under review, the Group’s focus area within this segment was its Gl reducer — a patented formula consisting
of barley, dhal, fenugreek and okra — which has been independently verified to have significant reduction of blood sugar
levels when added to white flour, without changing the taste or texture of the final product.

The Group has made significant progress with its Gl reducer, which includes a partnership with Veripan Ingredients AG
(Veripan), the largest independent bakery supplier in Europe, to develop and market PANATURA®GI, an all-natural
sourdough. White bread made with PANATURA®GI has been proven to achieve a significantly low Gl reading of 55.

On 3 March 2016, we began a partnership with Nadja Foods LLC (Nadja Foods) to co-develop clean-label low-GI muffins
for distribution in U.S. and Canada. On 6 April 2016, Holista extended this partnership with Nadja Foods to include bagels,
brownies and croutons.

On 12 July 2016, our U.S. subsidiary Litefood Inc (Litefood) announced the formation of a 51-49 joint venture company
(Holista Foods) with Nadja Foods to distribute our low-Gl product in North America. Holista Foods has food
manufacturing operations in the U.S. and Canada, and will be helmed by Nadja Piatka, a celebrity chef who has pioneered
many healthy food products, as CEO.
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This is a landmark partnership as North America is widely known as the home of fast food chains, and entering this
market will present opportunities for the Group to generate income from this area in the near future. According to
research by global food research house Statista, baked goods account for over US$22.15 billion in retail sales across
North America.

On 21 October 2016, Holista Foods secured its first major collaboration following the announcement of a Research and
Development (R&D) collaboration with a leading North American noodle manufacturer, Wing’s Food Products (Wing's),
to develop the world’s first low-Gl noodles. Once validated, Wing’s and Holista Foods will enter a commercial agreement
to distribute the low-Gl noodles to the North American market.

According to Statista, 50% of the world’s wheat is consumed as noodles, with the largest markets being China and
Indonesia. In the U.S. alone, the noodle market is worth US$270 million. In 2015, the global demand for instant noodles
amounted to 103.58 billion servings.

On 17 Oct 2017, Litefood acquired an additional 25% of Holista Foods, following which Holista Foods became a 39%-
owned subsidiary of Holista CollTech.

On 19 October 2017, Holista Foods announced it had developed a breakthrough low-GI noodle formula, opening a major
market for a healthier version of the staple, which will be vital in the global fight against diabetes and obesity. The
noodles recorded a Gl reading of 38 in independent tests conducted by Glycemic Index Laboratories, Inc, Toronto,
Canada. The global average Gl reading for noodles is 60.

On 14 February 2018, Holista Foods announced it had signed a three-year MOU to supply its low-Gl mix to Wing’s.
Pursuant to the MOU, sales are expected to be US$6 million for the 2018 financial year. This is projected to increase to
US$12 million in 2019 and to USS$25 million in 2020. In the month of February 2018, we delivered the first 1,000 kg of raw
material to Canada for the first batch of production of low-Gl noodles.

Another focus area in this segment is Low-GlI sugar.

On 6 January 2017, we announced a collaboration with 2016 Nobel Prize Nominee, Daryl Thompson, to file a patent for
low-Gl sugar made from all-natural ingredients. Unlike most available alternatives on the market, our low-GlI sugar can be
melted, baked and caramelized for use in cooking applications — potentially replacing standard sugar altogether, with
minimal formulation issues. Moreover, the product is made from all-natural ingredients and is therefore unlikely to face
regulatory hurdles.

c.  Sheep (Ovine) Collagen

This area of business registered an increase during the year due to the additional markets we have secured in China, USA
and some global. We delivered 8,440 kg of collagen during the 12 months in review, compared to 1,520 kg in the previous
reporting period.

On 3 April 2017, the Group announced that it will supply collagen sourced from Australian sheep — certified disease-free
by the U.S. Department of Agriculture — to the USA Division of Australia’s Keneric Medical Supplies Pty Ltd, which will
develop products targeted at the multibillion-U.S. dollar global medical collagen market, marking Holista’s entry to the
sector, through an exclusive partnership.

According to U.K. biotechnology market research group Meticulous Research, the global collagen market is expected to
grow at a compounded annual rate of 6.3% from 2015 to reach US$3.97 billion by 2020. The world’s largest collagen
market is China, as collagen forms a critical component of Traditional Chinese Medicine. It is also popular with ethnic
Chinese people elsewhere in the world.

On 21 August 2017, the Group announced that it has begun a $1 million retrofit of its facility in Collie, Western Australia,
to prepare for production of halal-certified food-grade collagen. The retrofit is scheduled for completion by end-March
2018. The halal certification is now secured, taking the Collie plant’s capacity to an additional 4 tonnes of food-grade
collagen per month, supplementing the expected 3-4 tonnes of cosmetic-grade collagen we will produce from the second
half of 2018.

The Group will carry out the sale of food collagen via a unique collaboration with iGalen, a global network marketing
company headquartered in San Diego. iGalen sources all its bio-pharmaceutical and dietary supplement products
exclusively from Holista. Beyond supplying to iGalen, Holista intends to market food collagen to the food supplement
industry.

Among sources of mammalian collagen (warm-blooded like human beings), sheep-derived collagen is not subject to
religious or cultural sensitivities, compared to collagen from cows or pigs. The use of ovine collagen also avoids the
potential of “mad cow” or avian diseases (the latter being associated with chickens).
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5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

6.

Financial Review

The comparative figures presented in this report are the 31 December 2016 Annual Report, which was a six month annual
report due to a change in financial year. Accordingly, changes from the comparative period have been effected by the
differing length of reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The
Group incurred a loss for the year of $3,174,268 (6 months to Dec 2016: $163,858 profit).

The Group’s revenue for the year ending 31 December 2017 was recorded at $7,569,007 as compared with the previous
six month period ending 31 December 2016 which recorded $3,716,876. This increase in revenue can mainly be
attributed to growth in sales to companies in the Multi-Level Marketing space.

The Group believes that its food grade collagen is expected to contribute better revenue as compared to its existing
cosmetic-based collagen. From scientific studies, the recommended minimum dosage for food grade collagen is 5 grams a
day (equivalent to 150 grams a month compared to 1 gram of cosmetic collagen per bottle). Food Grade Collagen offers
significantly greater opportunity.

We expect Collie facility retrofitting will be completed in June 2018. The Group is confident that this new source of
revenue from Collie will contribute positively to the Group’s revenue in the coming financial year as oral grade collagen is
a large and growing global market.

The Group’s healthy food ingredients is targeted to continue growing in the coming financial year with the launch of
Klamax, which is sourced from algae found in pristine conditions in a United States lake.

The positive development of both the healthy food ingredients in the U.S. and food grade collagen in Australia are
expected to contribute positively to the Group in this coming financial year.

The net assets of the Group have increased from 31 December 2016 by $374,134 to $3,483,512 at 31 December 2017
(2016: $3,109,378).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents increased from 31 December 2016 by $62,877 to
$120,982 at 31 December 2017 (2016: $58,105) and had working capital of $964,764 (2016: $1,181,394 working capital),
as noted in Note 1a.iii Statement of significant accounting policies: Going Concern on page 24.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

There are no other significant after balance date events that are not covered in this Directors' Report or within the
financial statements as disclosed in Note 25 Events subsequent to reporting date on page 69.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

Likely developments, future prospects and business strategies of the operations of the Group and the expected results of
those operations, not otherwise disclosed in the this report, have not been included in this report as the Directors believe
that the inclusion of such information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

Environmental Regulations

Holista has operated under environmental licence L7998/2003/3 issued by the Western Australian Department of Water
and Environmental Regulation as prescribed under the Environmental Protection Act 1986. The licence relates to collagen
extraction and purification, waste water storage and wastewater disposal pipeline to the Collie Power Station marine
disposal outfall tank. During the financial year the Group's operations were materially conducted in accordance with the
guidelines of that licence.

The Group's operations are not subject to any other significant environmental regulations in the jurisdictions it operates
in, namely Australia, Malyasia, and the United States.

Risk Management

The Group takes risk management seriously and has put in place the following procedures:

B Oversight: An Audit Committee has been established to direct, review and initiates corrective action

in matters of internal control and minimise risk exposures compatible with a group
company of this size and nature.
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B Risk Profile

B Risk Management

B  Compliance and Control

B Assessment of Effectiveness

31 December 2017

An exercise has been performed to assess the various business risks that impinge upon the
Group. They have been categorised according to which part or parts of the business would
be effected, what controls might be put in place and whether the resulting levels of
exposure are acceptable.

The Group has taken decisions as to how it should manage the various categories of risk
exposure and they include the imposition of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) for
routine business transactions; mitigation policies to lessen or obviate risks such as
Insurance Policies and formal long term Agreements with critical suppliers; and hedging
arrangements if applicable.

Standard Operating Procedures have been drawn up, circulated and regularly monitored
to ensure adherence to company policy. They include the various cash, purchasing, sales,
and payment cycles, and payroll. Levels of Authority have been set, divisions of duty are
made and multiple signature approvals imposed. Regular checks are made by management
to ensure that these controls are indeed in place and complied with.

The management in the first instance assesses the effectiveness of the risk management
policies and in conjunction with the Audit Committee and External Auditors, instructs
improvements to be put in place.

7. Information relating to the directors

B Dr Rajen Manicka O
Qualifications O
Experience O

Interest in Shares and O
Options

Directorships held in O
other listed entities
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Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Appointed July 2009)
B Ph. (Hons)

Dr Rajen Manicka, began his career as an intern pharmacist at the Kuala Lumpur General
Hospital from 1986 - 1987. In 1987 he joined Lee Pharmacy as a community Pharmacist. Over
a period of 9 years, Dr Rajen worked for several reputable pharmaceutical companies
including Roche and CIBA Pharmaceuticals in various capacities including medical
representative, product manager and marketing manager. In 1995, he incorporated Total
Health Concept, which was restructured into Holista Biotech Sdn Bhd in January 2004 and has
been Managing Director and major shareholder from inception of this group until its merger
with Holista CollTech Limited in July 2009. He is a prominent figure in the Malaysian biotech
industry, an industry which receives significant support and encouragement from the
Malaysian government.

Dr Rajen has been a guest lecturer in alternative medicine at the University of Malaysia, the
National University of Malaysia and the International Medical University in Malaysia. He was
also a health columnist for the Sunday Times- Malaysia's second largest Sunday newspaper
and writes a monthly column on biotech and business for The Edge, Malaysia's largest
business weekly.

Dr Rajen Manicka is a member of the Malaysian Ministry of Health Standing Committee for
Traditional Medicine and until March 2009 was on the board of Malaysian Herbal Corporation
Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Malaysian Industry - Government Group for High
Technology.

73,914,400 Ordinary Shares

3,600,000 Class A Performance Rights
2,700,000 Class B Performance Rights
1,800,000 Class C Performance Rights
900,000 Class D Performance Rights
None
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B Mr Daniel Joseph
O’Connor

[0 Non-Executive Director (Appointed November 2011)

Qualifications O B.Bus, MBA, FAICD (Dip) CPM, AIMM, MAIM, MAleX.

[0 Mr O’Conner has spent more than 30 years in the commercialisation of intellectual property
and has worked with R&D teams across Asia, North America, and Australia. He is a published
author, mentor, coach, commercialisation consultant, and Company Director. He is the
Consultant Principal of the on-line coaching and mentoring group Incubate IP. Mr O’Connor is
a member of the UN Task Force on Innovation and Competitiveness and works with Corporate
Leaders, inventors, and R&D team managers who need greater traction and focus with patent
portfolio management and driving their commercialisation projects (www.incub8IP.com). He
has been a Director of Holista for more than five years.

Interest in Shares and O 3,500,000
Options

Experience

Options

Directorships held in
other listed entities

Mr Chan Heng Fai

Qualifications

Experience

None

Non-Executive Director (Appointed 13 June 2013)

Mr Chan has restructured over 35 companies in different industries and countries in the past
40 years.

In 1987, Mr Chan acquired American Pacific Bank, a full service U.S. commercial bank, out of

bankruptcy. He recapitalised, refocused and grew the bank’s operations. Under his guidance,
American Pacific Bank became a US NASDAQ high asset quality bank, with zero loan losses for
over five consecutive years before it was ultimately bought and merged into Riverview
Bancorp Inc. Prior to its merger with Riverview Bancorp Inc., in June 2004, American Pacific
Bank was ranked 13 by the Seattle Times “Annual Northwest’s Top 100 Public Companies” for
the year 2003, and ranked 6 in the Oregon state [for the year 2003], which ranked ahead of
names such as Nike, Microsoft, Costco, AT&T Wireless and Amazon.com.

In 1997, Mr Chan acquired and ran a regional investment banking and securities broking-
dealing business headquartered in Denver, with 12 offices throughout USA.

Interest in Shares and O 45,145,101
Options

Ordinary Shares
Mr Chan exercised 12,330,166 options, via his company Global eHealth Limited and
transferred 3,500,000 options to an unrelated third-party.

Directorships held in
other listed entities

O Mr Chan also sits on the board of Singapore eDevelopment Limited.

8. Meetings of directors and committees

During the financial year six meetings of Directors (including committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each Director

during the year are stated in the following table.
DIRECTORS'
MEETINGS

REMUNERATION AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

FINANCE AND OPERATIONS
COMMITTEE

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Number Number Number
eligible to Number eligible to Number eligible to Number

attend Attended attend Attended attend Attended
At the date of this report, the Audit, Nomination, and Finance and

Number
eligible to
attend

Number
Attended

Rajen Manicka 6 > Operations Committees comprise the full Board of Directors. The Directors
Daniel Joseph O’Connor 6 6 believe t.he Company is not currently of a fize nor are its affairs of such

complexity as to warrant the establishment of these separate
Chan Heng Fai 6 6 committees. Accordingly, all matters capable of delegation to such

committees are considered by the full Board of Directors.

9. Indemnifying officers or auditor

9.1. Indemnification

The Company has agreed to indemnify all the directors of Holista for any liabilities to another person (other than the
Company or related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors of the Company and its controlled
entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith.

HOLISTA
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9.2. Insurance premiums

During the financial year the Group has paid a premium of $17,230 (6 months to 31 December 2016: $17,381) in respect
of a contract to insure the directors and officers of the Company and its controlled entities against any liability incurred in
the course of their duties to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001.

10. Options

10.1. Unissued shares under option
At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Holista CollTech Limited under option (listed and unlisted) are

as follows:
Grant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number under
S Option
11 April 2016 8 Sep 2018 0.25 3,954,205
11 April 2016 8 Mar 2019 0.30 3,954,205
27 Feb 2017 17 Dec 2018 0.06 3,500,000
23 Mar 2017 23 Mar 2020 0.20 6,500,000
18 May 2017 23 Mar 2020 0.20 3,500,000
18 May 2017 31 Dec 2019 0.10 1,000,000
26 Jun 2017 23 Jun 2020 0.20 6,000,000
26 Jun 2017 23 Jun 2020 0.25 3,000,000
26 Jun 2017 23 Jun 2020 0.30 2,000,000
26 Jul 2017 1 Aug 2020 0.10 2,000,000
16 Oct 2017 16 Oct 2020 0.20 7,000,000
42,408,410

No person entitled to exercise the option has or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of
any other body corporate.

10.2. Shares issued on exercise of options

12,330,166 (Dec 2016: 2,136,500) ordinary shares have been issued by the Company during the financial year as a result
of the exercise of options.

11. Non-audit services

During the year, Stantons International Audit and Consulting Pty Ltd, the Company’s auditor, did not perform any services
other than their statutory audits (2016: $nil). Details of remuneration paid to the auditor can be found within the financial
statements at Note 30 Auditor's Remuneration on page 71.

In the event that non-audit services are provided by Stantons International Audit and Consulting Pty Ltd, the Board has
established certain procedures to ensure that the provision of non-audit services are compatible with, and do not compromise,
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. These procedures include:

B non-audit services will be subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and will be reviewed
by the Board to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

B ensuring non-audit services do not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or
decision-making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

12. Proceedings on behalf of company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to
which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those
proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
13. Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) for the year ended
31 December 2017 has been received and can be found on page 19 of the annual report.
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14.

14.1.

14.2

Remuneration report (audited)

The information in this remuneration report has been audited as required by s308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).
Key management personnel (KMP)

KMP have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. KMP comprise
the directors of the Company and key executive personnel:

B Dr Rajen Manicka Managing Director Chief Executive Officer

B Mr Daniel Joseph O’Connor Non-executive Director

B Mr Chan Heng Fai Non-executive Director

As at 31 December 2016, Mr Jay Stephenson was no longer a person having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. Mr Stephenson has solely undertaken the role

of Company Secretary, and is not a director of the Company. As such Mr Stephenson is not deemed to be KMP for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

. Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

a. Remuneration philosophy
The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of the KMP. The philosophy of the Company in
determining remuneration levels is to:
[0 set competitive remuneration packages to attract and retain high calibre employees;
O link executive rewards to shareholder value creation; and

[0 establish appropriate, demanding performance hurdles for variable executive remuneration.

b. Remuneration committee
Currently the responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are undertaken by the full Board.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for determining and reviewing
compensation arrangements for the directors, the CEO and the executive team.

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of directors
and executives on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with an overall objective
of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality KMP.

c. Remuneration structure

In accordance with best practice Corporate Governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive
remuneration is separate and distinct.

d. Non-executive director remuneration

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract and
retain directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders.

The ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined from
time to time by a general meeting. The latest determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 1 December
2003 when shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of $200,000 per year.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is
apportioned amongst directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers advice from external shareholders as well
as the fees paid to non-executive directors of comparable companies when undertaking the annual review process.

Each director receives a fee for being a director of the Company. An additional fee is also paid for each Board
committee on which a director sits. The payment of additional fees for serving on a committee recognises the
additional time commitment required by directors who serve on one or more sub committees.

The remuneration of non-executive directors for the period ended 31 December 2017 is detailed in section 14.3 of
this remuneration report.

e. Senior manager and executive director remuneration

Remuneration consists of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (comprising short-term and long-term
incentive schemes).
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14. Remuneration report (audited)

f.

Fixed Remuneration

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Board. The process consists of a review of relevant comparative
remuneration in the market and internally and, where appropriate, external advice on policies and practices. The
Committee has access to external, independent advice where necessary.

Senior managers are given the opportunity to receive their fixed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms
including cash and fringe benefits such as motor vehicles and expense payment plans. It is intended that the manner
of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Group.

The fixed remuneration component of the company executives is detailed in section 14.3 of this remuneration report.

Variable Remuneration

The aggregate of annual payments available for KMP across the Group is subject to the approval of the Remuneration
Committee During the year.

Performance Based Remuneration — Short-term and long-term incentive structure

The Board will review short-term and long-term incentive structures from time to time. Any incentive structure will
be aligned with shareholders' interests

O Short-term incentives

No short-term incentives in the form of cash bonuses were granted during the year.

O Long-term incentives

The Board has a policy of granting incentive options and performance rights to KMP with exercise prices above
market share price. As such, incentive options granted to executives will generally only be of benefit if the
executives perform to the level whereby the value of the Group increases sufficiently to warrant exercising the
incentive options granted.

The executive Directors will be eligible to participate in any short term and long term incentive arrangements operated or
introduced by the Company (or any subsidiary) from time to time.

Service Contracts

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the directors and other KMP are formalised in contracts of
employment.

Engagement of Remuneration Consultants

During the financial year, the Company did not engage any remuneration consultants.

Relationship between Remuneration of KMP and Earnings

The Company is also in the midst of commercialising some of its patented technologies, namely its Healthy Food
Ingredients and Sheep Collagen. Accordingly, the Company’s remuneration policy during the current and the previous
four financial years is not related to the Company’s performance.

14.3. Directors and KMP remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and KMP of the Group (as defined in AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) are
set out in the following table.
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14. Remuneration report (audited)

Short-term benefits Post- Long-term Termination Equity-settled share-
employment  benefits benefits based payments
benefits
Salary, fees Profit share Non- Other Super- Other Equity / Options
and leave and bonuses monetary annuation Perf. Rights
$ $ $ $ $
Rajen Manicka™ 224,881 - - - 42,728 - - 1,033,291 - 1,300,900
Daniel Joseph 48,000 - - - - - - - 192,036 240,036
0’Connor?
Chan Heng Fai 36,000 - - - - - - - - 36,000
308,881 - - - 42,728 - - 1,033,291 192,036 1,576,936

(1)

In respect to Dr Manicka’s equity-settled share-based payments, Dr Manicka was issued 9,000,000 performance rights in accordance

with terms and conditions as detailed in Note 21b.i(7)

In respect to Mr O’Connor’s equity-settled share-based payments, Mr O’Connor was issued 3,500,000 options in accordance with terms
and conditions as detailed in Note 21b.i(1)

Short-term benefits Post- Long-term Termination Equity-settled share-
employment  benefits benefits based payments
benefits
Salary, fees Profit share Non- Super- Other Equity Options
and leave and bonuses monetary annuation
$
Rajen Manicka 112,361 - - - 21,350 - - - - 133,711
Daniel Joseph O’Connor - - - - - - - - - -
Chan Heng Fai 18,000 - - - - - - - - 18,000
Jay Stephenson 24,400 - - - - - - - - 24,400
154,761 - - - 21,350 - - - - 176,111

14.4. Service Agreements

a. Employment Agreement with Dr Rajen Manicka

On 7 September 2010, the Group entered into an Employment Agreement with Dr Rajen Manicka to act as Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director. On the 28 August 2015, the Board of Directors reviewed and renewed the
Employment Agreement of Dr Rajen Manicka as the Chief Executive Director and Managing Director of the Group.
Saved for the changes below, all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement dated 7 September 2010
remains the same.

A summary of the terms of his employment are as follows:

[0 Commencement date 10 July 2015

[0 Termination date of contract Initial 3 year period

[0 Period of notice for resignation/termination 3 months

[0 Remuneration RM692,160 per annum with annual increments of 3% - 5%.

[0 Termination (with cause) The Company may terminate at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause occurs
employees are only entitled to entitlements up to the date of
termination and any unvested options will immediately be
forfeited.

[0 Termination (without cause) The Agreement provides for the termination of the Agreement by

HOLISTA
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paying a severance payment of up to three months in addition to
notice period.
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14.5. Share-based compensation

The Group believes that encouraging its directors and executives to become shareholders is the best way of aligning their
interests with those of its shareholders. At present the Group does not have an employee share option plan.

No shares or options were issued as share based compensation during the year. (Jun 2016: nil)

There were no equity instruments issued during the year to Directors as a result of options exercised that had previously
been granted as compensation.

a. Securities received that are not performance-related

No members of KMP are entitled to receive securities that are not performance-based as part of their remuneration package.

b. Options and Rights Granted as Remuneration
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017 9,000,000 performance rights were granted to Dr Manicka and
3,500,000 options were granted to Mr O’Connor as remuneration as detailed note 21 Share-based payments. No equity
instruments were granted in the six months ended 31 December 2016.

14.6. KMP equity holdings

a. Fully paid ordinary shares of Holista CollTech Limited held by each KMP

Received during
Received during the year on

Balance at the year as the exercise of Other changes Balance at
start of year compensation options during the year end of year
No. b No. 5 No.

Rajen Manicka 73,914,400 - - - 73,914,400

Daniel Joseph O’Connor = = - _ B

Chan Heng Fai 32,814,935 . 12,330,166 . 45,145,101
106,729,335 . 12,330,166 = 119,059,501

Received during

Received during the year on
Balance at

Balance at the year as the exercise of Other changes
start of year compensation options during the year end of year
No. . No. . No.

Rajen Manicka 73,914,400 - - - 73,914,400

Daniel Joseph O’Connor - - _ _ R
Chan Heng Fai 32,514,935 - 300,000 - 32,814,935

Jay Stephenson - - - - -
106,429,335 - 300,000 - 106,729,335

b. Options in Holista CollTech Limited held by each KMP

[CEECES
Balanceat  Remuneration Exercised  Other changes Balance at Vested and

startof year  during the year  duringthe year  during the year end of year Exercisable Not Vested
\[o} (\[o} b \[o} \[o} No.

Rajen Manicka - - - = o - -

Daniel Joseph
O’Connor

3,500,000 =

3,500,000 3,500,000 -
Chan Heng Fai®” 15,830,166 = (12,330,166) (3,500,000) . = =
15,830,166 3,500,000  (12,330,166) (3,500,000) 3,500,000 3,500,000 .

W In respect to Mr Chan, other changes during the year relate to an off-market transfer of 3,500,000 options for consideration

of $210,000 ($0.06 per option) to an unrelated third-party.
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14. Remuneration report (audited)

Granted as

Balanceat  Remuneration Exercised  Other changes Balance at Vested and

startof year  during the year  during the year  during the year end of year Exercisable Not Vested
No.

Rajen Manicka - - - - - - -

Daniel Joseph
O’Connor

Chan Heng Fai 17,966,666 - (300,000) (1,836,500) 15,830,166 15,830,166 -

Jay Stephenson - - - - - - -

17,966,666 - (300,000) (1,836,500) 15,830,166 15,830,166 -

c. Performance rights of Holista CollTech Limited held by each KMP

Received during
Received during the year on

Balance at the year as the exercise of Other changes Balance at
start of year compensation options during the year end of year
No. b 5 No.

Rajen Manicka - 9,000,000 _ _ 9,000,000
Daniel Joseph O’Connor = = - _ B

Chan Heng Fai - - - - -

= 9,000,000 = = 9,000,000

2016 — Group: There were no performance rights on issue in the comparative period.

14.7. Other Equity-related KMP Transactions

There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the tables above
relating to options, rights and shareholdings.

14.8. KMP Loans

There are no loans to or from KMP as at 31 December 2017. In the comparative period ended 31 December 2016, a loan
amounting to US$250,000 was advanced by an associated company of a Director as detailed in Note 17e. On 24 March
2017, 6,012,698 options were exercised to affect the settlement of a loan of $360,762 from Global eHealth Limited.

14.9. Other transactions with KMP and or their Related Parties

As disclosed Note 16b, the Group has amounts due to Directors of $297,601 (2016: 69,098). There have been no other
transactions in addition to those described in the tables or as detailed in Note 28 Related party transactions.

END OF REMUNERATION REPORT

This Report of the Directors, incorporating the Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of directors
made pursuant to s.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

L

\
\

DR RAJEN MA\\IICKA
Managing Director
Dated this Thursday, 29 March 2018
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Stantons International Audit and Consulting Pty Ltd

trading as PO Box 1908
Stantons International R

Chartered Accountants and Consultants LBVElD: 1 Walker AVSRUS

West Perth WA 6005
Australia

Tel: +61 8 9481 3188
Fax: +61 8 9321 1204
29 March 2018 ABN: 84 144 581 519

) www.stantons.com.au
Board of Directors

Holista CollTech Limited
Suite 12, Level 1

11 Ventnor Avenue
West Perth WA 6005

Dear Directors

RE: HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, | am pleased to provide
the following declaration of independence to the directors of Holista CollTech Limited.

As Audit Director for the audit of the financial statements of Holista CollTech Limited for
the period ended 31 December 2017, | declare that to the best of my knowledge and
belief, there have been no contraventions of:

(i)  the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

(i)  any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours faithfully

STANTONS INTERNATIONAL AUDIT AND CONSULTING PTY LTD
(Trading as Stantons International)
(An Authorised Audit Company)

Samir Tirodkar
Director

West Perth, Western Australia

Liability imited by a scheme approved Member of Russell Bedford International @ Russell
under Professional Standards Legislation Bedford
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ANNUAL REPORT HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

31 December 2017 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note
12 months to

Restated
6 months to

31 December 31 December

2017
S

Continuing operations

Revenue 4 7,569,007
Other income 4 338,736

7,907,743
Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 51,564
Raw materials and consumables used (3,868,768)
Distribution costs (313,880)
Consultancy and professional fees 21 (861,427)
Depreciation and amortisation (224,514)
Employment costs (2,379,167)
Finance costs (83,580)
Foreign exchange loss (78,053)
Share-based payments expense 21 (1,589,954)
Research and development 21 (468,223)
Advertising and promotion (556,481)
Impairment 5b,2b (152,205)
Other expenses 5a (717,541)
(Loss) / profit before tax (3,334,486)
Income tax benefit / (expense) 7 160,218
Net (loss) / profit for the period (3,174,268)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
B Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -

B [tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

O Foreign currency movement (37,405)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (37,405)
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the parent entity (3,211,673)

(Loss) / profit for the period attributable to:
B Non-controlling interest (143,978)
B Owners of the parent (3,030,290)

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

B Non-controlling interest (143,978)
B Owners of the parent (3,067,695)
Earnings per share: ¢

Basic (loss) / profit loss per share (cents per share) 6 (1.69)
Diluted profit per share (cents per share) 6 N/A

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HOLISTA

COLLTECH

2016
S

3,716,876
351,404
4,068,280
(51,263)
(1,486,996)
(176,955)
(215,732)
(70,532)
(877,867)
(34,032)
(46,429)
(6,943)
(65,237)
(288,020)
(10,434)
(510,594)

227,246
(63,388)

163,858

(197,639)
(197,639)

(33,781)

(2,410)
166,268

(8,012)
(25,769)
¢
0.10
0.08
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017

Note Restated

2016
S

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 120,982 58,105
Trade and other receivables 9 1,807,114 2,040,254
Inventories 10 956,236 891,340
Other current assets 11a 876,746 596,101
Total current assets 3,761,078 3,585,800

Non-current assets

Property, plant, and equipment 12 1,557,436 1,569,356
Intangible assets 13 858,803 321,986
Investment accounted using the equity method 15c.iii, 2a - -
Deferred tax asset 7f 292,526 99,085
Other non-current assets 11b,2a 343,912 471,193
Total non-current assets 3,052,677 2,461,620
Total assets 6,813,755 6,047,420

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 2,557,670 1,672,621
Borrowings 17a 222,975 718,700
Current tax liabilities 7e 7,588 6,569
Short-term provisions 18 8,081 6,516
Total current liabilities 2,796,314 2,404,406

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liability 7g - 770
Borrowings 17b 533,929 532,866
Total non-current liabilities 533,929 533,636
Total liabilities 3,330,243 2,938,042
Net assets 3,483,512 3,109,378
Equity

Issued capital 19a 11,538,515 10,798,705
Reserves 20 4,395,833 1,896,643
Accumulated losses (12,257,265) (9,378,424)
Non-controlling interest (193,571) (207,546)
Total equity 3,483,512 3,109,378

The consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note Foreign Non-
: Share-based Currency controlling

oo Issued Payments Translation Accumulated Interest

OE-t Capital Reserve Reserve Losses (NCI)

- s s s s s

;1! ; Balance at 1 July 2016 10,670,515 2,265,730 (183,993) (9,544,692) (199,534) 3,008,026

o Loss for the period attributable owners of the parent - - - 166,268 (2,410) 163,858

z Other comprehensive income for the period attributable owners of the parent - - (192,037) - (5,602) (197,639)
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable owners of the parent - - (192,037) 166,268 (8,012) (33,781)
Transaction with owners, directly in equity
Shares issued during the period 19a 128,190 - - - - 128,190
Options granted during the period 19e - 6,943 - - - 6,943
Balance at 31 December 2016 10,798,705 2,272,673 (376,030) (9,378,424) (207,546) 3,109,378
Balance at 1 January 2017 10,798,705 2,272,673 (376,030) (9,378,424) (207,546) 3,109,378
Loss for the year attributable owners of the parent - - - (3,030,290) (143,978) (3,174,268)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable owners of the parent - - (37,405) - - (37,405)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable owners of the parent - - (37,405) (3,030,290) (143,978) (3,211,673)
Transaction with owners, directly in equity
Shares issued during the year 19a 739,810 - - - - 739,810
Options granted during the year 19e - 2,536,595 - - - 2,536,595
NCI upon acquisition of subsidiary 3a.ii - - - - 179,408 179,408
NCI acquisition of additional interests 21b - - - - 129,994 129,994
Reduction of interest in subsidiary 21b - - - 151,449 (151,449) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 11,538,515 4,809,268 (413,435) (12,257,265) (193,571) 3,483,512

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received

Finance costs

Other revenue

Net income tax received

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from legal settlements

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intellectual property

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment

Increase in fixed deposits pledged

Construction of plant and equipment

Loans provided, net

Net cash acquired on acquisition

Increase in deposits / investments

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of options
Shares issued to non-controlling interest

(Repayment of) / proceeds from borrowings, net

Advance loan to third party

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Change in foreign currency held

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

ANNUAL REPORT
31 December 2017

Note 31 December 31 December
2017 2016

S S

8,362,462 3,716,876

(8,017,323) (3,331,165)

6,302 5,901

(75,235) (24,080)

- 37,825

(35,284) 283,851

8c.i 240,922 689,208
- 3,456

- 3,467

(68,663) (117,181)

(161,940) (106,808)

- (5,757)

= (532,427)

(257,166) (48,144)

8c.iv(2),(3) 28,035 -
(104,579) (115,703)

(564,313) (919,097)

379,049 128,190

128,968 -

(120,362) 355,663
= (377,453)

387,655 106,400
64,264 (123,489)

58,105 348,434
(1,387) (166,840)

8a 120,982 58,105

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ANNUAL REPORT HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

31 December 2017 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies

These are the consolidated financial statements and notes of Holista Colltech Limited (Holista or the Company) and controlled
entities (collectively the Group). Holista is a company limited by shares, domiciled and incorporated in Australia.

The separate financial statements of Holista, as the parent entity, have not been presented with this financial report as
permitted by the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 29 March 2018 by the directors of the Company.

a. Basis of preparation

The financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For the purposes of preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements are presented below. They have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

i. Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AAS Board) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) set out accounting policies that the AAS Board has concluded would result in a
financial report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply.
Compliance with AASBs ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with IFRS as issued by the IASB.

ii. Change in financial year end

In the prior reporting period, the company changed its financial year end from 30 June to 31 December. The current period
figures relate to 12 months from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas (as a result of the change in financial year
end), the comparative period relates to the 6 months ended 31 December 2016.

The comparative amounts disclosed in the financial report and related notes are not comparable as the lengths of the
periods differ by six months.

iii. Going Concern

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business
activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The Group incurred a loss for the year of $3,174,268 (2016: $163,858 profit) and a net cash in-flow from operating activities
of $240,922 (2016: $689,208 in-flow). As at 31 December 2017, the Company working capital of $964,764 (2016:
$1,181,394 working capital), as disclosed in Note 19f of the Issued capital note.

This financial report is prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business activities
and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The ability of the Group to continue
to pay its debts as and when they fall due is dependent upon the Group's ability to generate positive cash flows through its
existing business and/ or raising of further equity.

The Group's cosmetic collagen business continues to grow and is generating revenue of $392,400 with a growth of 41.5%
over 2016. This area of business will grow with new interest from an international cosmetic company operating out of
China. This will be a much higher margin business that we contemplate with get attention with the network of this
company in Thailand and Indonesia.

The Group has invested in some essential equipment at its Collie Plant to produce the Food Grade Collagen on a higher
scale. We expect this equipment to be commissioned in June 2018. The Group is confident that this new source of revenue
from Collie will contribute positively to the Group’s revenue in the coming financial year as oral grade collagen is a large
and growing global market.

Beside the cosmetic and food grade collagen, the Group will also enter into the Medical Grade collagen. The Group expects
to get its ISO certification in June and be able to supply this as feedstock from September 2018.

On the Healthy Food Ingredients, we expect to see significant revenue in Australia, Asia and Europe in the next 12 months.
Our US indirect subsidiary, Holista Foods Inc, to distribute our low-Gl product in North America and has met with success
with the low Gl noodles. This business segment will expected to generate revenue in next financial year

Our sales of dietary supplement ingredients to companies in the Multi-Level Marketing space will continue to grow in the
area of EMULIN and Glutathione precursors. This has grown to $2.4 million and 97% in terms of growth
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AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 31 December 2017
ABN 24 094 515 992

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies

While the Group is optimistic that its Malaysian and Australian revenue will continue to grow and contribute positively in
the future, it does realise the risk should the Group fail to generate sufficient positive cash flows and/or obtain funding
when required. There is significant uncertainty as to whether the Group will continue as a going concern and whether it will
realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial
report.

iv. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements made by management in the application of AASBs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 1t.

v. Comparative figures

The comparative figures presented in financial statements are from the 31 December 2016 Annual Report, which was a six
month annual report due to a change in financial year. Accordingly, changes from the comparative period have been
effected by the differing length of reporting period. The Company believes these comparatives presented are the most
relevant to users.

Where required by AASBs comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current
financial year.

Where the Group retrospectively applies an accounting policy, makes a retrospective restatement or reclassifies items in its
financial statements, an additional (third) statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period in
addition to the minimum comparative financial statements is presented.

b. Accounting Policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements. The
Group has considered the implications of new and amended Accounting Standards applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning after 1 January 2017 but determined that their application to the financial statements is either not relevant or not
material.

c. Principles of consolidation

As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities have been incorporated into the consolidated financial
statements as well as their results for the year then ended. Where controlled entities have entered (left) the Consolidated
Group during the year, their operating results have been included (excluded) from the date control was obtained (ceased).

i. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed to variable returns from another entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

B the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

B the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus

B if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree;

less

B the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

HOLISTA
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ANNUAL REPORT HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

31 December 2017 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies
The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement
of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts
are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Equity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group are presented as non-controlling
interests. The Group initially recognises non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests in subsidiaries and
are entitled to a proportionate share of the subsidiary's net assets on liquidation at either fair value or at the non-
controlling interests' proportionate share of the subsidiary's net assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-controlling
interests are attributed their share of profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income. Non-controlling
interests are shown separately within the equity section of the statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income.

The grant by the company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the group
is treated as a capital contribution to that subsidiary undertaking. The fair value of employee services received, measured
by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing
so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 14 Interest In Subsidiaries of the financial statements.

iii. Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests
and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, than such interest is measured at
fair value at the date control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-
sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

iv. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

d. Foreign currency transactions and balances

i. Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the Group's entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which
is the legal parent entity's functional and presentation currency.
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AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 31 December 2017
ABN 24 094 515 992

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies

ii. Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured
at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit or loss except where
deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in other comprehensive income, otherwise the exchange
difference is recognised in the profit or loss.

iii. Group companies and foreign operations

The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the Group's
presentation currency are translated as follows:

B assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date;
B income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and
B retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the Group's foreign currency
translation reserve in the statement of financial position. These differences are recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the operation is disposed.

e. Taxation

i. Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary difference and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

B when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

B when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint
ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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ANNUAL REPORT HOLISTA COLLTECH LIMITED

31 December 2017 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 24 094 515 992

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

B when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

B when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint
ventures, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Holista CollTech Limited recognises its own current and deferred tax amounts and those current tax liabilities, current tax
assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax credits and unused tax losses which it has assumed from its
controlled entities within the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
payable or receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. Any difference between the amounts receivable or
payable under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) controlled entities in
the tax consolidated group.

Where the Group receives the Australian Government's Research and Development Tax Incentive, the Group accounts for
the refundable tax offset under AASB 112. Funds are received as a rebate through the parent company's income tax return
and disclosed as such in Note 7 Income Tax.

ii. Value added taxes

Value-added tax (VAT) is the generic term for the broad-based consumption taxes that the Group is exposed to such as:
Australia (Goods and Services Tax or GST) and in Malaysia (Goods and Sales Tax or GST), hereafter collectively referred to
as GST.

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of
the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown
inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office (or jurisdictional equivalent) is
included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority.
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f.  Fair Value

i.  Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Group measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis, depending
on the requirements of the applicable AASB.

Fair value is the price the Group would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly
unforced transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine
fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability.
The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the
market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most
advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts
from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction
costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant's ability to use the asset
in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of liabilities and the entity's own equity instruments (excluding those related to share-based payment
arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial
instruments, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this
information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the respective
note to the financial statements.

ii. Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which
categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that is
significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Measurements based on quoted prices Measurements based on inputs other Measurements based on unobservable

(unadjusted) in active markets for than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs for the asset or liability.
identical assets or liabilities that the that are observable for the asset or
entity can access at the measurement liability, either directly or indirectly.
date.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. If all
significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more
significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

The Group would change the categorisation within the fair value hierarchy only in the following circumstances:
B if a market that was previously considered active (Level 1) became inactive (Level 2 or Level 3) or vice versa; or
B if significant inputs that were previously unobservable (Level 3) became observable (Level 2) or vice versa.

When a change in the categorisation occurs, the Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy (i.e.
transfers into and out of each level of the fair value hierarchy) on the date the event or change in circumstances occurred.

iii. Valuation techniques

The Group selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available
to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the
asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Group are consistent with one or more of the
following valuation approaches:

B Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for
identical or similar assets or liabilities.

B /ncome approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
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Note 1 Statement of significant accounting policies
B Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the
asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the Group gives priority to those
techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are
developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions
that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for
which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such
assumptions are considered unobservable.

g. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets (see accounting policy le) are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from
other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement, unless the asset has previously been
revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any
excess recognised through the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

h. Financial instruments

i. Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the
Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's obligations specified on the contract expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

ii. Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through
profit or loss, any directly attributable transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial
instruments are measured as described below.
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Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(1)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits available on demand with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are reported
within borrowings in current liabilities or the statement of financial position. For the purposes of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.

(2) Loans
Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Loans are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.

(3)  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within periods ranging from 15 days to 30 days. Receivables
expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other
receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Impairment of trade receivables is continually
reviewed and those that are considered to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An
allowance account is used when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original contractual terms. Factors considered by the Group in making this determination include
known significant financial difficulties of the debtor, review of financial information and significant delinquency in
making contractual payments to the Group. The impairment allowance is set equal to the difference between the
carrying amount of the receivable and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Where receivables are short-term discounting is not applied in determining the allowance. (see
also Note 1h.vii).

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within other expenses. When a trade receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becomes
uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against other expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

(4)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category 'financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss'. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

(5)  Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for
an undefined period are not included in this classification. Investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such
as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. If the Group
were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.
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1 Statement of significant accounting policies

(6)  Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for sale investments are
measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance date.
For investments with no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument that is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

(7)  Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and the financial liability is derecognised..

(8)  Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged
to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months.

(9) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible note is determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the note. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and
included in shareholders' equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

(10)  Share capital

Ordinary issued capital is recorded at the consideration received. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.
Ordinary issued capital bears no special terms or conditions affecting income or capital entitlements of the
shareholders.

iv. Amortised cost

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition
less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method.

V.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to
determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm's length transactions, reference to similar
instruments and option pricing models.
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Vi.

1 Statement of significant accounting policies

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is
equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) over the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net
cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a consequential recognition of an income or expense
item in profit or loss.

Vii.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

viii.

Page

(1)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

(2)  Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value (because its fair value cannot be reliably measured), or on a derivative asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

(3)  Available-for-sale investments

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to the statement of comprehensive income. Reversals
of impairment losses for equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit. Reversals of
impairment losses for debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if the increase in an instrument's fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

(1)  Financial assets
A financial asset or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

B the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

B the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; or

B the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
O has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

O has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration received that the Group could be required to repay.

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or
similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

(2)  Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

ix. Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assets), gains on the
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the financial
asset.

Financial expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method, unwinding of
discounts on provisions, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and impairment
losses recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

i. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and conditions are accounted for as follows:
B Raw materials - purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis; and

B Finished goods and work-in-progress - cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

j. Property, Plant, and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any impairment losses
recognised after the date of the revaluation.

Items of plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (see below)
and impairment losses (see accounting policy 1g Impairment of non-financial assets).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible
for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation.
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Where considered material, the carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to
ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of
the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net
cash flows have not been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Where parts of an item of property, plant, and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of plant and equipment.

ii. Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. Any costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement as an
expense as incurred.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the Group
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of
either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually for appropriateness. The depreciation rates used for the current
and comparative period are:

B Buildings 4.00 4.00
B Plant and equipment 20.00 to 33.33 20.00 to 33.33
B Motor Vehicles 20.00 20.00

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

iv. Derecognition and disposal

An item of